
State of Illinois) SS

Belvidere, Illinois)

BELVIDERE CITY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA

March 7, 2016

Convened in the Council Chambers, 401 Whitney Blvd, Belvidere IL at 7: 00 p.m.
Mayor Chamberlain presiding.

1) Roll Call:

2) Pledge of Allegiance:

Invocation:  Mayor Chamberlain.

3) Public Comment: (Please register with the City Clerk):

4) Approval of minutes of the regular meeting of the Belvidere City Council of
February 15, 2016; as presented.

5) Public Hearing: None.

6) Special Messages and Proclamations:

7) Approval of Expenditures:   None.

8) Committee Reports and Minutes of City Officers:

A) Belvidere Police Department Overtime Report of February 2, 2016
through February 15, 2016.

B) Belvidere Police Department Overtime Report of February 15, 2016
through March 1, 2016.

C) Belvidere Fire Department Overtime Report of February 3, 2016
through February 16, 2016.

D) Belvidere Fire Department Overtime Report of February 17, 2016
through March 1, 2016.

E) Belvidere-BC Planning Department Monthly Report of February 2016.

F) Minutes of Committee of the Whole— Public Safety and Finance and
Personnel of February 22, 2016.

9)   Unfinished Business:

A) Ord. #284H—
2nd

Reading: An Ordinance Amending Section 110- 198 of the
City of Belvidere Municipal Code Employee Parking PSB.

Tabled February 15, 2016.



B)  Ord. #285H—
2nd

Reading: An Ordinance Amending Ordinance# 235H
Establishing an Enterprise Zone within Certain Unincorporated Areas of the
County of Boone and Certain Incorporated Areas of the City of Belvidere,
Village of Capron and Village of Poplar Grove.

C)  Ord. #286H—
2nd

Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use for a
Planned Development within the I, Institutional District( for Sheffield

Meadows LLC at 1800 Maple Avenue.

D)  Ord. #287H—
2nd

Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit
Animated Signage within the I, Institutional ( I 100 West Chrysler Drive).

E)  Ord. #288H—
2nd

Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit
Indoor Commercial Entertainment within the GB, General Business District

417, 425 Southtowne Drive).

F)  Ord. #289H—
2nd

Reading:  An Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit
Indoor Commercial Entertainment within the GB, General Business District
372 West Chrysler Drive).

G) Ord. #290H—
2nd

Reading: An Ordinance Creating a Crosswalk from the
Employee Exit Sidewalk at 630 Meadow Street to the Parking Lot Directly
Across Meadow Street in the City of Belvidere.

10)    New Business:

A)  Ord. #291 H— 1
st

Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Variance from Section
22- 806 Preventing Increased Flood Heights and Resulting Damages of the
City of Belvidere Municipal Code.

B)  Motion to waive the two-week layover for Ord. #291H.

C)  Ord. #291H—
2nd

Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Variance from Section
22- 806 Preventing Increased Flood Heights and Resulting Damages of the
City of Belvidere Municipal Code.

D) Ord. #292H— 
1St

Reading: Budget Ordinance.

E)  Res. # 2038- 2016: A Resolution to Release Certain Executive Session

Minutes Pursuant to 5 ILCS 120/ 1 Et. Seq.

F)  Res. # 2039- 2016: A Resolution Directing the Planning Department to
Publish the Zoning Map of the City of Belvidere.



Motions forwarded from Committee of the Whole—Public Safety and Finance and
Personnel of February 22, 2016.
Finance and Personnel Motions Chairman Ratcliffe.

A) Motion to approve the Audit Services from Sikich LLP for FY16, FY17 and
FY18.

B)  Motions to approve the appointments of Renee L. Keeney and James J.
Holich to the Ida Public Library Board.

C)  Motion to approve the proposal from Miller Engineering in the amount of
18, 872 to replace the 25 ton rooftop unit at City Hall. The cost of this work

will be paid for from Water line item 61- 5- 810-6040 in the amount of

6, 000, Sewer line item 61- 5- 820- 6010 in the amount of$6, 000 and General

Fund line item 01- 5- 110- 6010 in the amount of$6, 872.

D) Motion to approve the submittal of the grant application for $21, 000 to

develop a Historic Preservation Plan with implementation strategies for the
next decade.

E)  Motion to approve the 2016 MFT Street Maintenance Program— Revised

memo dated February 10, 2016 from Public Works Director Brent Anderson.

F)  Motion to approve creating and funding a Community Development Planner
position at a salary not to exceed $ 55,000 plus benefits.

11)    Other:

A) Executive Session to discuss Appointment, employment, compensation,

discipline, performance or dismissal of a specific employee pursuant to
2 ( c) ( 1) of the Open Meetings Act.

12)    Adjournment:



State of Illinois SS

Belvidere, Illinois

Belvidere City Council
Regular Session

Minutes

Date:  February 15, 2016

Convened in the Belvidere City Council Chambers, 401 Whitney Blvd, Belvidere
Illinois at 7 p.m. Mayor Chamberlain presiding:

1) Roll Call:  Present: D. Arevalo, R. Brooks, J. Sanders, G. Crawford, W. Frank,

C. Morris, T. Ratcliffe, D. Snow and C. Stevens.

Absent:  M. Sanderson.

Other staff members in attendance:  Budget and Finance Director Becky Tobin,
Building Director Lesa Morelock, Public Works Director Brent Anderson,
Fire Lt. Harbison, Police Chief Jan Noble, Deputy Chief Martin, Sergeant Wallace,
City Attorney Drella and City Clerk Arco.

2) Pledge of Allegiance:

Invocation: Mayor Chamberlain:

3) Public Comment:  Cathy Ward commented on City-County Planning Department.

4) Approval of Minutes:

A)Approval of minutes of the regular meeting of the Belvidere City Council of
February 1, 2016; as presented.

Motion by Ald. Frank, 2
n

by Ald. Sanders to approve the minutes of the regular meeting
of the Belvidere City Council of February 1, 2016. Roll Call Vote: 9/ 0 in favor.
Ayes:  Arevalo, Brooks, Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow and Stevens.
Nays: None. Motion carried.

5) Public Hearing:

6)  Special Messages and Proclamations:

A) Mayor Chamberlain would like to know which Aldermen are interested in

attending the Chamber Annual Dinner and Senator Syverson Dinner.

7) Approval of Expenditures:  General & Special Fund Expenditures:  $ 1, 154, 882.21

Water& Sewer Fund Expenditures:  $  952,596.61



Belvidere City Council
February 15, 2016 2

Motion by Ald. Snow, 2"
d

by Ald. Arevalo to approve the General & Special Fund

Expenditures in the amount of$ 1, 154, 882.21. Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0 in favor. Ayes:

Brooks, Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens and Arevalo.

Nays: None.  Motion carried.

Motion by Ald. Arevalo, 2"
d

by Ald. Sanders to approve the Water& Sewer Fund

Expenditures in the amount of$952,596.61. Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0 in favor. Ayes:

Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Arevalo and Brooks.

Nays: None.  Motion carried.

8) Committee Reports& Minutes of City Officers:

A) Belvidere Police Department Overtime Report of January 19, 2016
through February 1, 2016.

B)  Belvidere Fire Department Overtime Report of January 20, 2016
through February 2, 2016.

C)  Building Department Revenue Report for January 2016.
D) Belvidere-Boone County Planning Department Report for January 2016.
E)  Monthly Treasurer' s Report for January 2016.
F)  Monthly General Fund Report for January 2016.
G) Monthly Water and Sewer Fund Report for January 2016.
H) FYI General Fund Cash Flow Analysis through January 2016.
I)   Minutes of City-County Coordinating Committee of January 13, 2016.
J)  Minutes of Historic Preservation Commission of January 26, 2016.
K) Minutes of Planning and Zoning Commission of February 9, 2016.

Let the record show these reports were read and placed on filed.

L)  Minutes of Committee of the Whole - Building, Planning and Zoning and
Public Works of February 8, 2016.

Motion by Ald. Snow, 2"
d

by Ald. Ratcliffe to approve the minutes of Committee of the
Whole - Building, Planning and Zoning and Public Works of February 8, 2016. Roll Call
Vote:  9/ 0 in favor. Ayes:  Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Arevalo,
Brooks and Sanders. Nays: None. Motion carried.

9)  Unfinished Business:

A) Ord. #284H— 2"
d

Reading: An Ordinance Amending Section 110- 198 of the
City of Belvidere Municipal Code Employee Parking PSB.

Motion by Ald. Brooks, 2"
d

by Ald. Crawford to pass Ord. #284H.



Belvidere City Council
February 15, 2016 3

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 2"
d

by Ald. Sanders to amend to include Sec. 110- 198 Parking
Restricted. Roll Call Vote to amend:  9/ 0 in favor.  Ayes: Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe,

Snow, Stevens, Arevalo, Brooks, Sanders and Crawford. Nays: None. Motion carried.

Audience Members and Staff that spoke on Ord. 9284H include Sheriff Ernest, Chief

Deputy Pollock, Police Chief Noble, Deputy Chief Martin, Shirley Mills and Susan Orr.

Motion by Ald. Brooks, 2"
d

by Ald. Morris to table Ord. #284H. Roll Call Vote:  5/ 4 in

favor. Ayes:  Morris, Ratcliffe, Stevens, Brooks and Crawford. Nays:  Snow, Arevalo,

Sanders and Frank. Motion carried.

10) New Business:

A) Flood Plain Variance— 123 Gladys Court.

Motion by Ald. Morris, 2"
d

by Ald. Crawford to forward to City Council - An Ordinance

Granting a Variance from Section 22- 806, Preventing Increased Flood Heights and
Resulting Damages of the City of Belvidere Municipal Code. Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0 in

favor. Ayes: Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Arevalo, Brooks, Sanders, Crawford, Frank and

Morris. Nays: None.  Motion carried.

B)  Ord. #285H— 
1St

Reading: An Ordinance Amending Ordinance# 235H
Establishing an Enterprise Zone within Certain Unincorporated Areas of the
County of Boone and Certain Incorporated Areas of the City of Belvidere,
Village of Capron and Village of Poplar Grove.

C)  Ord. #286H— 1" Reading:  An Ordinance Granting a Special Use for a
Planned Development within the I, Institutional District( for Sheffield

Meadows LLC at 1800 Maple Avenue).

D) Ord. #287H— 1
st

Reading: An Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit
Animated Signage within the I, Institutional ( I 100 West Chrysler Drive).

E)  Ord. #288H— 
1St

Reading:  An Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit
Indoor Commercial Entertainment within the GB, General Business District

417,415 Southtowne Drive).

F)  Ord. #289H— 1
st

Reading:  An Ordinance Granting a Special Use Permit
Indoor Commercial Entertainment within the GB, General Business District
372 West Chrysler Drive).

G) Ord. #290H— 1
st

Reading:  An Ordinance Creating a Crosswalk from the
Employee Exit Sidewalk at 630 Meadow Street to the Parking Lot Directly
Across Meadow Street in the City of Belvidere.

Let the record show Ordinances #285H, #286H, #287H, #288H, #289H and# 290H were
placed on file for first reading.



Belvidere City Council
February 15, 2016 4

Motions forwarded from City-County Coordinating of January 13, 2016.

A)Motion to approve TRC invoice# 174418 in the amount of$ 1, 127. 34 with a

50150 split between the County and the City. Roll Call Vote: 9/ 0 in favor.
Ayes:  Snow, Stevens, Arevalo, Brooks, Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris
and Ratcliffe. Nays: None. Motion carried.

B) Motion to approve TRC quote for work in the amount of$6,375 with a 50/ 50

splits between the County and the City. Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0 in favor. Ayes:
Stevens, Arevalo, Brooks, Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe and

Snow. Nays: None. Motion carried.

C) Motion to approve Wilson Electric invoice #66227 in the amount of$ 1, 378

with a 50150 split between the County and the City. Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0 in

favor. Ayes: Arevalo, Brooks, Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe,

Snow and Stevens. Nays: None.  Motion carried.

Motions forwarded from Committee of the Whole— Building, Planning and Zoning and
Public Works of February 8, 2016.

A) Motion to approve the low bid of Northern Illinois Service Company in the
amount of$ 1, 426,512 for the Columbia Avenue/Aspen Court Reconstruction

Project. This work will be paid for from Capital Funds. Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0
in favor. Ayes:  Brooks, Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow,

Stevens and Arevalo. Nays: None.  Motion carried.

B) Motion to approve the low bid from Alliance Contractors in the amount of

616,876. 35 for the 2016 State Street Streetscape Rehabilitation Project. This
work will be paid for from Capital Funds.  Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0 in favor.

Ayes:  Sanders, Crawford, Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Arevalo
and Brooks. Nays: None. Motion carried.

C) Motion to approve the request from St James to hold a Good Friday Parade on
March 25, 2016.  Roll Call Vote:  9/ 0 in favor. Ayes:  Crawford, Frank,

Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Arevalo, Brooks and Sanders. Nays: None.
Motion carried.

11) Other:

A) Review of Executive Session Minutes pursuant to 2 ( c) ( 21) of the Open
Meetings Act.

Motion by Ald. Snow, 2°
d

by Ald. Brooks to move into Executive Session at 8: 59 p.m.
Roll Call Vote: 9/ 0 in favor. Ayes: Frank, Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Arevalo,
Brooks, Sanders and Crawford. Nays: None. Motion carried.



Belvidere City Council
February 15, 2016 5

Motion by Ald. Arevalo, 
2nd

by Ald. Snow to move out of Executive Session at 9: 05 p.m.
Roll Call Vote: 9/ 0 in favor.  Ayes: Morris, Ratcliffe, Snow, Stevens, Arevalo, Brooks,
Sanders, Crawford and Frank. Nays: None.  Motion carried.

12) Adjournment:

Motion by Ald. Crawford, 
2nd

by Ald. Arevalo to adjourn at 9: 05 p.m.
Aye voice vote carried. Motion carried.

Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk



BELVIDERE  -  BOONE COUNTY

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
401 Whitney Boulevard, Suite 300, Belvidere, Illinois, 61008 ( 815) 544-5271 FAX( 815) 547-9214

February 2016 Monthly Report

Number Project Description Submittal Closed

County Projects
2 Cases: February Lot of Record, TA 1/ 20/ 2016

1445 Huntwood Drive, SU 2/ 1/ 2016

0 Cases: March

0 Temporary Uses:      None

2 County Site Plans( New/ Revised)  Ceroni Piping, 7770 Ceroni Drive 2/ 10/ 2016

EVAC, 1445 Huntwood Drive 2/ 22/ 2016

EVAC, 1445 Huntwood Drive 2/ 26/ 2016

0 Final Inspection None

B C Agricultural Conservation Easement Determined a date and location
and Farmland Protection Commission to show the movie Farmland 2/ 26/ 2016

Belvidere Projects

Beverly Materials, LLC( Plote),

SU, 4654 Townhall Road/ 4201

5 Cases: February Irene Road 7/ 15/ 2015 2/ 22/ 2016

Sheffield Meadows, SU, 1800 Maple Avenue 1/ 12/ 2016 3/ 7/ 2016

UAW, SU, 1100 Chrysler Drive 1/ 12/ 2016 3/ 7/ 2016

One- Stop, SU, 413-425 Southtowne Drive 1/ 12/ 2016 3/ 7/ 2016

Donato Financial, 380 W. Chrysler Drive 1/ 19/ 2016 3/ 7/ 2016

0 Cases: March

1 Annexation Road/ 4201 Irene Road 7/ 17/ 2015 2/ 22/ 2016

0 Temporary Uses None

4 Site Plans( New/ Revised)    BCHD, 1204 Logan Avenue 2/ 9/ 2016

Dr. Kossman, 908-916 Belvidere Rd 2/ 16/ 2016

New Millenium Medical, 1424 N. State St 2/ 16/ 2016

Speedway, Crystal Drive 2/ 22/ 2016

0 Final Inspection None

0 Downtown Overlay Review



Planning Monthly Report
Page 2

Field survey continued for Phse II

survey;  CLG grant monthly report

Belvidere Historic Preservation forwarded to IHPA; send award

Commission
recipient notification letters for 2/ 1 to 2/ 29

May 12 Awards; at Apollo theater;
prepared Certified Local

Government Grant for Historic

Preservation Plan.

Belvidere Hometown Market None

Heritage Days

Continued planning 2016 event

Number Project Description Submittal Closed

Poplar Grove Projects

0 Cases: February None

1 Cases: March Poplar Grove Storage, 4431 IL Rte 173, SU 1/ 28/ 2016

0 Temporary Uses None

0 Site Plans( New/ Revised)    None

1 Final Inspection Dollar General, 13685 IL Route 76 2/ 5/ 2016

Prepared Zoning Verification Letters
0 County None

0 Belvidere None

0 Poplar Grove None

Researched Lot of Record parcels

0 Letters Issued None

Issued Address Letters

0 County None

0 Belvidere None

0 Poplar Grove None

Scanned Plats: E- mail, Print and/ or Burn
0 Recorder' s Office None

1 Other Department 2/ 1/ 2016

0 General Public None

Comprehensive Plan Update

County None

Belvidere None

Poplar Grove None

February



Planning Monthly Report
Page 3

Planning Department Annual Report Completed draft of report

Planning Department Current Duties

Close out completed planning case files
Respond to all FOIA requests

Work with 911 and Fire Department/ Districts to verify all addresses in the county

Assist Growth Dimensions with requested data

Meetings and phone calls with developers regarding potential development

Phone calls/ walk- ins for questions regarding zoning, floodplain, development, etc.
Prepare minutes, agendas and packets for eight committees, commissions, boards

Prepare deposits and purchase orders for bill payments

February



Minutes

Committee of the Whole

Public Safety and Finance and Personnel
February 22,   2016 6: 00 p. m.

Call to Order  -  Mayor Chamberlain.

Aldermen Present :       D.  Arevalo,   R.   Brooks,   J.   Sanders,

G.   Crawford,  W.   Frank,   T.   Ratcliffe,

and C.   Stevens .

Aldermen Absent: C.  Morris,   M.   Sanderson and D.   Snow.

Also in attendance:   Budget and Finance Director Becky
Tobin,   Building Director Lesa Morelock,   Treasurer Ric

Brereton,   Public Works Director Brent Anderson,   Interim

Planning Director Kathy Miller,   Police Chief Jan Noble,

Deputy Chief Tony Martin,   Sgt.  Matt Wallace,   Lt Shawn

Schadle,   Lt Craig Wilcox,   City Attorney Drella and City
Clerk Arco.

Public Comment :    Andy Racz commented on the Boone County
Board decision to split the joint City  -  County Planning
Department .

Public Forum:

Reports of Officers,   Boards and Special Committees :

Lt Shawn Schadle recognized Firefighter Rotolo,   Firefighter

Swanson,   and Firefighter Ellwanger,   Lifeline crew members

Ken Dalke and Alex Hyatt and Enterprise driver Randy Fry
for their skilled actions during a medical call on January
28,   2016 that saved the life of Wallie Nettleton.

Budget and Finance Director Becky Tobin  -  Audit Services .

Motion by Ald.  Arevalo,   
2nd

by Ald.   Sanders to approve the

Audit Services from Sikich LLP for FY16,   FY17 and FY18 .

Aye voice vote carried.    Motion carried.

1 .   Public Safety,   Unfinished Business :   None.

2 .   Public Safety,   New Business:

A)     Police Department 2015 Annual Report presented by
Police Chief Noble and Deputy Chief Martin.



Committee of the Whole

February 22,  2016 2

3 .   Finance and Personnel,   Unfinished Business :     None.

4 .   Finance and Personnel,   New Business :

A)     Appointments to the Library Board.

Motion by Ald.   Ratcliffe,   
2nd

by Ald.   Crawford to approve

the appointments of Renee L.   Keeney and James J.   Holich to

the Ida Public Library Board.    Aye voice vote carried.

Motion carried.

B)     Replacement of City Hall Rooftop Unit.

Motion by Ald.   Crawford,   
2nd

by Ald.   Brooks to approve the

proposal from Miller Engineering in the amount of  $18, 872

to replace the 25 ton rooftop unit at City Hall .     The cost

of this work will be paid for from Water line item

61- 5- 810- 6040 in the amount of  $6, 000,   Sewer line item

61- 5- 820- 6010 in the amount of  $6, 000 and General Fund line
item 01- 5- 110- 6010 in the amount of  $6, 872 .    Aye voice vote
carried.     Motion carried.

C)     Budgets  -  General Administration,   Capital and Non

Union Salaries presented by Budget and Finance
Director Becky Tobin.

5 .     Other:

A)     Historic Preservation CLG Grant Application.

Motion by Ald.  Arevalo,   
2nd

by Ald.   Brooks to approve the
submittal of the grant application for  $21, 000 to develop a
Historic Preservation Plan with implementation strategies
for the next decade.    Aye voice vote carried.     Motion
carried.

B)     2016 MFT Street Maintenance Program  -  Revised.

Motion by Ald.  Arevalo,   
2nd

by Ald.   Brooks to approve the
2016 MFT Street Maintenance Program  -  Revised memo dated

February 10,   2016 from Public Works Director Brent
Anderson.     Aye voice vote carried.     Motion carried.



Committee of the Whole

February 22,  2016 3

C)     Planning Department  -  Termination of Agreement.

Motion by Ald.   Crawford,   
2nd

by Ald.  Arevalo to approve

creating and funding a Community Development Planner
position at a salary not to exceed  $55, 000 plus benefits.

Aye voice vote carried.    Motion carried.

6.     Adjournment :

Motion by Ald.   Crawford,   
2nd

by Ald.  Arevalo to adjourn

meeting at 8 : 01 p. m.

Mayor

Attest :

City Clerk



ORDINANCE #291H

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIANCE FROM

SECTION 22- 806, PREVENTING INCREASED FLOOD

HEIGHTS AND RESULTING DAMAGES, OF THE

CITY OF BELVIDERE MUNICIPAL CODE

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Belvidere, Boone County, Illinois, as follows:

SECTION 1: A variance from Section 22- 806 of the City of Belvidere Municipal Code
is granted for 123 Gladys Court, Belvidere Illinois to allow the repair of
the single home structure therein from fire damage incurred in August of
2015.  The variance herein granted is for the repair of the fire damage only
and shall not allow future maintenance, additions or alteration which is
prohibited by section 22- 806.

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage
and publication in pamphlet form as required by law which publication is
hereby authorized.

Voting Aye:

Voting Nay:
Abstain:

Absent:

APPROVED:

Mayor Michael W. Chamberlain

ATTEST:

City Clerk Shauna Arco

Passed:

Approved:

Published:

Page 1 of 1



BUDGET ORDINANCE

City of Belvidere

Ordinance  #292H

An ordinance budgeting for all corporate purposes for the City of Belvidere, Boone
County, Illinois for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2016, and ending April 30, 2017.

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Belvidere,
Boone County, Illinois, that

SECTION 1:  The amount thereinafter set forth, or so much thereof as may be
authorized by law, and as may be needed or deemed necessary to defray all
expenses and liabilities of the municipality be and the same are hereby budgeted
for the corporate purposes of the City of Belvidere, Boone County, Illinois as
hereinafter specified for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2016, and ending April 30,
2017,

SECTION 2:  The amount budgeted for each object and purpose shall be as
set forth in Exhibit A.

SECTION 3:  The salaries for appointed officials and certain other employees

are established and fixed as set forth in Exhibit B, which is incorporated by
this reference.

SECTION 4:  If any section, subdivision, or sentence of this ordinance shall for
any reason be held invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect
the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 5:  A certified copy of this ordinance shall be filed with the County
Clerk within 30 days after adoption.

SECTION 6:  This ordinance shall be published in pamphlet form and shall be
in full force and effect after its passage, approval, and publication as provided
by law.



PASSED this day of March, 2016, pursuant to a roll call vote by the
City Council of the City of Belvidere, Boone County, Illinois.

APPROVED:

ATTEST:

City Clerk

AYES:

NAYES:

Date Approved:

Sponsor:



GENERAL FUND EXHIBIT A

REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Beginning Cash 7, 475, 319 8, 591, 954 8, 591, 954 8, 695, 147

General Administration

RE Property Tax 01- 4- 110-4010 1, 820, 935 1, 832, 148 1, 832, 148 1, 840,576

Hotel/ Motel Tax 01- 4- 110-4011 3, 774 4, 736 4, 736 3, 836

Auto Rental Tax 01- 4- 110-4012 7, 071 5, 760 5, 760 6,000
Muni Infrastructure Maint 01- 4- 110-4013 169,623 171, 600 171, 600 177, 600

State Income Tax 01- 4- 110-4100 2, 484, 441 2, 532, 915 2, 532, 915 2,609,670

Muni Sales Tax 01- 4- 110-4110 3,266, 150 3, 202, 519 3, 202, 519 3, 219,242

Sales Tax to Developer 01- 4- 110- 4111 0 0 0 0

Local Use Tax 01- 4- 110-4112 492, 691 496,349 496, 349 601, 247

Replacement Tax 01- 4- 110-4120 501, 471 427,808 427, 808 468, 082
Repl Tax Dist to Pensions 01- 4- 110-4121 255, 962)     ( 257, 241)     ( 257. 241)   264, 958)
State Grants 01- 4- 110-4150 0 0 0 0

Grants( Ndevelopment)      01- 4- 110-4151 0 0 0 0

Business License 01- 4- 110-4200 17, 193 15, 500 15, 500 16. 791

Liquor License& Fines 01- 4- 110-4210 122, 000 66, 000 66, 000 102, 450

Amusement Machine 01- 4- 110- 4230 8, 540 7, 740 7, 740 9, 000
Court Fines 01- 4- 110-4400 480, 921 360, 000 360, 000 375. 000

Parking Fines 01- 4- 110-4410 5, 822 9, 000 9, 000 7, 764

Seized Vehicle Fee 01- 4- 110-4420 108,000 91, 200 91, 200 87, 000
Engr Fees- Subdivision 01- 4- 110- 4430 827 20, 000 20,000 20.000
Video Gambling 01- 4- 110- 4440 108, 364 93,600 93,600 180,000
Franchise Fees 01- 4- 110- 4450 254, 160 254, 717 254, 717 261, 613
Comcast Fees 01- 4- 110- 4455 0 0 0 0
Death/ Birth Certificates 01- 4- 110- 4460 16, 902 17, 253 17, 253 17, 470

Accident/Fire Reports 01- 4- 110-4470 5, 854 5,675 5, 675 5, 147
Annexation/ Plat Fees 01- 4- 110- 4471 0 20,000 20,000 20,000

Tipping Fees 01- 4- 110-4472 179, 023 100, 000 100,000 100,000
Interest Income 01- 4- 110-4600 25,220 16, 000 16.000 28,000
Misc Revenues 01- 4- 110-4900 34, 355 39.200 39,200 35,600
Heritage Days 01- 4- 110-4901 14, 700 0 0 0
Historic Preservation Fund Raising 01- 4- 110-4902 1, 805 0 0 0
Historic Preservation Grant Reimb 01- 4- 110-4903 7, 000 0 0 0

Operating Transfer in 01- 4- 110- 9998 0 1, 500 000 1, 500, 000 1, 900,000
Total General Administration Revenues 9, 880, 883 11, 032, 479 11, 032. 479 11, 827, 130

Telecom Tax Rebate 01- 5- 110-4013 10, 783 0 0 0
Salaries- Elected Officials 01- 5- 110- 5000 207, 328 207, 623 207, 623 207,623
Salaries- Regular- FT 01- 5- 110- 5010 200,844 215, 775 215, 775 225. 850

Group Health Insurance 01- 5- 110- 5130 390,513 392, 008 392, 008 454,289
Health Ins Claims Paid( Dental)     01- 5- 110- 5131 26,958 40, 000 40, 000 40,000

Group Life Insurance 01- 5- 110- 5132 1, 318 1, 530 11530 1, 357
Unemployment Compensation 01- 5- 110- 5136 0 0 0 0
Health Insurance Reimbursement 01- 4- 110-4540 143, 250)     ( 126,557)     ( 126, 557)   146,356)

Meeting& Conferences 01- 5- 110- 5154 8, 647 16, 340 16, 340 15.465
Subscriptions/ Ed Materials 01- 5- 110- 5156 1, 029 600 600 600
Gen Admin Personnel& Benefit Expenses 704, 170 747,319 747, 319 798, 828

Repairs/ Maint- Bldgs 01- 5- 110-6010 25, 386 22, 660 22, 660 48, 200
Repairs/Maint- Equip 01- 5- 110- 6020 0 5, 000 5, 000 5. 000
Legal 01- 5- 110- 6110 6, 542 13. 800 13, 800 12, 900
Other Professional Services 01- 5- 110-6190 21813 5, 000 5, 000 2.000
Grant Expenses( Ndev)     01- 5- 110-6191 0 0 0 0
Telephone 01- 5- 110-6200 47,564 15. 500 15, 500 13, 840
Codification 01- 5- 110- 6225 0 6, 000 6, 000 6. 000
Other Communications 01- 5- 110- 6290 6, 504 4, 300 4, 300 4, 760
Gen Admin Contractual Expenses 88,809 72, 260 72, 260 92,700

1 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

General Administration( cont)      Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Office Supplies 01- 5- 110-7020 50, 099 77, 970 77, 970 62, 900

Other Supplies 01- 5- 110-7800 6, 608 7, 000 7, 000 7, 350

Gen Admin Supplies Expenses 56, 707 84,970 84, 970 70, 250

Miscellaneous Expense 01- 5- 110- 7900 53, 950 83,280 83, 280 78, 960

Reimb of Seized Vehicle Fee 01- 5- 110- 7901 2, 100 0 0 0

Heritage Days 01- 5- 110- 7902 0 0 0 0

Comcast Charges 01- 5- 110- 7903 0 0 0 0

Historic Preservation 01- 5- 110- 7904 0 0 0 0

Operating Transfers Out 01- 5- 110- 9999 944, 882 1, 147, 281 1, 147, 281 987. 021

Total General Administration Expenses 1, 850,617 2, 135, 110 2, 135, 110 2, 027, 759

NET GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 8, 030,266 8, 897, 369 8, 897, 369 9, 799, 371

General Fund- Audit Department

RE Taxes- Audit 01- 4- 130-4010 19, 995 20. 100 20, 100 20 000

Accounting & Auditing 01- 5- 130- 6100 29 100 35, 000 35, 000 33. 000

NET- AUDIT DEPARTMENT 9, 105)      ( 14, 900)      ( 14,900)    13, 000)

General Fund - IMRF Department

IMRF Withheld 01- 4- 140- 2013 0 0 0 0

RE Taxes- IMRF 01- 4- 140- 4010 74, 932 72, 000 72, 000 72, 000

Replacement Tax 01- 4- 140- 4120 89, 393 90, 000 90, 000 92. 535

Interest Income 01- 4- 140- 4600 134 130 130 0

Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 140- 4940 19, 981 19, 291 19, 291 20, 543

Total IMRF Revenues 184, 440 181, 421 181, 421 185, 078

IMRF Premium Expense 01- 5- 140- 5120 205, 882 228, 512 228, 512 214, 926

NET- IMRF DEPARTMENT 21, 442)      ( 47, 091)      ( 47, 091)    29, 848)

General Fund - Social Security Department
RE Taxes - FICA/ Med 01- 4- 150- 4010 219, 792 225,000 225, 000 225, 000

Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 150-4940 122, 085 129, 171 129, 171 132, 152

Library Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 150- 4941 27, 756 30,600 30, 600 30,600
Total Soc Security Revenues 369,633 384. 771 384, 771 387, 752

FICA Expense 01- 5- 150-5110 191, 965 202, 000 202, 000 209,693

Medicare Expense 01- 5- 150- 5112 120, 503 130.000 130, 000 137,489

Total Soc Security Expenses 312,468 332. 000 332, 000 347, 182

NET - SOCIAL SECURITY DEPT 57, 165 52, 771 52,771 40, 570

General Fund - Liability Insurance Dept
RE Taxes- Ins Liability 01- 4- 160-4010 304,694 330,000 330,000 320,000

Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 160-4940 248, 508 252,825 252,825 0
Total Liability Insurance Revenues 553,202 582,825 582, 825 320,000

Insurance Premium 01- 5- 160- 6800 665,730 731, 217 731, 217 489.860
NET- LIABILITY INSURANCE DEPT 112,528)    ( 148, 392)     ( 148, 392)   169,860)

2 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Police Department Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

RE Property Tax 01- 4-210-4010 967,835 1, 033, 800 1, 033, 800 1. 044, 856

Grants 01- 4- 210-4150 63,298 69, 334 69, 334 49, 000

Miscellaneous Revenues 01- 4- 210-4900 271, 467 208, 723 208, 723 237, 959

Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 210-4940 13, 394 0 0 0

Total Police Department Revenues 1, 315, 994 1, 311, 857 1, 311, 857 1, 331, 815

Salary- Regular- FT 01- 5- 210- 5010 3, 182, 988 31341, 688 3, 341, 688 3,431, 919

Overtime 01- 5- 210-5040 351, 321 403, 000 403, 000 429, 300

Police Pension 01- 5- 210-5122 947, 866 1, 013, 800 1, 013,800 1, 024,856

Health Insurance 01- 5- 210-5130 637, 215 750, 941 750, 941 800.348

Dental Insurance 01- 5- 210- 5131 37, 164 50, 000 50, 000 50. 000

Unemployment 01- 5- 210- 5136 8, 781 0 0 0

Uniform Allowance 01- 5- 210- 5140 60, 189 64, 636 64, 636 64. 886

Training 01- 5- 210- 5152 63, 139 63,505 63, 505 64, 555

Police Dept Personnel& Benefit Expenses 5,288, 662 5,687, 570 5, 687, 570 5, 865,864

Repair/Maint-Equipment 01- 5- 210-6020 0 11, 345 11, 345 7, 425

Repair/ Maint-Vehicles 01- 5- 210-6030 96, 050 113,475 113, 475 107, 475

Telephone/ Utilities 01- 5- 210-6200 37, 113 45,768 45, 768 42, 790

Physical Exams 01- 5- 210-6810 240 4, 270 4, 270 4, 270

Community Policing 01- 5- 210-6816 7, 174 7, 725 7, 725 7, 950

K 9 Program Expenses 01- 5- 210-6818 2, 979 4, 650 4, 650 4, 700

Police Department- Contractual Expenses 143, 556 187, 233 187, 233 174, 610

Office Supplies 01- 5- 210-7020 9,480 10, 000 10, 000 10,550

Gas& Oil 01- 5- 210- 7030 139, 668 151, 000 151, 000 120.000

Operating Supplies 01- 5- 210- 7040 29, 838 39, 115 39, 115 42, 285

Miscellaneous Expense 01- 5- 210- 7900 33, 563 40, 500 40, 500 40,000

Police Department- Supplies Expense 212, 550 240, 615 240, 615 212, 835

Equipment 01- 5- 210- 8200 19, 499 36, 710 36, 710 50,245

Vehicles 01- 5- 210-8300 0 0 0 0

Total Police Department Expenses 5, 664,268 6, 152, 128 6, 152, 128 6, 303,554

NET- POLICE DEPARTMENT 4, 348, 274)  ( 4, 840, 271)  ( 4, 840, 271) 4, 971, 739)

Public Safety Building Department
Salaries- Regular- FT 01- 5- 215- 5010 537,835 633, 185 633, 185 657, 952

Other( FICA& IMRF) 01- 5- 215-5079 108,750 120, 000 120, 000 146, 263

Other Contractual Services 01- 5- 215-6890 199,226 170, 776 170, 776 230, 000

NET- PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG DEPT 845,811)     ( 923, 961)    ( 923, 961) 1, 034, 215)

3 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Fire Department Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

RE Property Tax 01- 4- 220-4010 742, 382 738, 100 738, 100 816.892

Grants 01- 4- 220-4150 153, 199 15, 000 15, 000 0

Miscellaneous Revenues 01- 4- 220-4900 33,287 15, 000 15, 000 25 000

Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 220-4940 0 0 0 0

Total Fire Department Revenues 928, 868 768, 100 768, 100 841, 892

Salaries- Regular- FT 01- 5- 220-5010 1, 908, 887 2, 046, 645 2, 046, 645 2, 047.477

Overtime 01- 5- 220- 5040 334,289 197, 250 197, 250 203. 250

Fire Pension 01- 5- 220- 5124 722, 406 721, 600 721, 600 796, 892

Health Insurance 01- 5- 220- 5130 348,945 424, 242 424, 242 458, 233

Dental Insurance 01- 5- 220- 5131 16, 972 35, 000 35.000 35,000

Unemployment Insurance 01- 5-220-5136 0 0 0 0

Uniform Allowance 01- 5-220- 5140 38, 383 34, 000 34, 000 35. 500

Training 01- 5-220- 5152 30,672 29.650 29,650 30.540

Fire Depart Personnel & Benefits Expenses 3, 400,553 3, 488, 387 3, 488,387 3, 606.892

Repair/ Maint-Bldg 01- 5- 220-6010 44, 535 51, 050 51, 050 54, 050

Repair/Maint-Vehicles 01- 5- 220-6030 70, 804 55. 200 55,200 54, 200

Telephone/Utilities 01- 5- 220-6200 11, 634 12. 680 12,680 13, 060

Physical Exams 01- 5- 220-6810 1, 210 2, 500 2, 500 2, 500

Fire Prevention 01- 5- 220-6822 4, 910 4, 650 4,650 10, 000

Fire Department- Contractual Expenses 133,093 126,080 126, 080 133.810

Office Supplies 01- 5- 220- 7020 11, 083 12, 530 12, 530 16. 830

Gas& Oil 01- 5- 220-7030 21, 643 23, 700 23, 700 20,000

Operating Supplies 01- 5- 220-7040 15, 764 9,000 9,000 6.000

Miscellaneous Expense 01- 5- 220-7900 615 1, 000 1, 000 1. 000

Fire Department- Supplies Expenses 49, 105 46,230 46,230 43.830

Equipment 01- 5- 220- 8200 58, 553 51, 000 51, 000 50. 530

Total Fire Department Expenses 3, 641, 305 3, 711, 697 3. 711 697 3, 835,062

NET- FIRE DEPARTMENT 2, 712,437)  ( 2, 943, 597)  ( 2, 943, 597) 2, 993, 170)

Police& Fire Commission Department

Physical Exams 01- 5- 225- 6810 13, 630 17. 391 17, 391 18, 750

Other Contractual Services 01- 5- 225- 6890 31, 396 5.483 5. 483 8 835

NET- POLICE& FIRE COMMISSION 45,026)      ( 22,874)      ( 22, 874)    27, 585)

4 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Community Development Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Building Permits 01- 4- 230-4300 270,533 202,902 202,902 208, 989

Electric Permits 01- 4- 230-4310 16, 032 21, 675 21, 675 21, 325

Electrician Certification Fees 01- 4- 230-4315 4,450 4, 500 4,500 4, 500

Plumbing Permits 01- 4- 230-4320 53, 533 14, 760 14, 760 14, 200

HVAC Permits 01- 4- 230-4330 4,451 9,440 9, 440 5, 310

Plan Review Fees 01- 4- 230-4340 42,624 33, 155 33, 155 34, 149

Sidewalk/Lot Grading Fee 01- 4- 230-4350 1, 020 1, 820 1, 820 1, 575

Insulation Permits 01- 4- 230-4360 1, 323 1, 990 1, 990 2, 050

Zoning Review Fee 01- 4- 230- 4370 2, 845 4, 049 4, 049 3,430

Code Enforcement 01- 4- 230- 4380 4, 100 4,600 4, 600 11, 400

Other Permits 01- 4- 230- 4390 4,043 7, 865 7, 865 5, 690

Miscellaneous Revenues 01- 4- 230- 4900 50 1, 000 1, 000 500

Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 230- 4940 5, 016 5, 967 5, 967 0

Planning Fees 01- 4- 230- 4950 0 0 0 9. 000

Planning Misc 01- 4- 230-4955 0 0 0 1. 000

Community Dev- Revenues 410. 018 313, 723 313. 723 323, 118

Salaries- Regular- FT 01- 5- 230- 5010 155,661 161, 328 161. 328 216,459

FICA 01- 5- 230- 5079 31, 226 32, 151 32, 151 16, 559

IMRF 01- 5- 230-5120 0 0 0 27, 955

Health Ins Expense 01- 5- 230-5130 29, 761 36, 972 36,972 70, 269

Dental Insurance 01- 5- 230- 5131 1, 852 3, 000 3, 000 4, 000

Unemployment 01- 5- 230-5136 0 0 0 0

Training 01- 5- 230-5152 2, 124 4, 500 4, 500 6, 000

Building Dept Personnel & Benefits Expense 220, 624 237, 951 237, 951 341, 242

Repair/ Maint- Equip 01- 5- 230- 6020 1, 938 3, 500 3, 500 5. 000

Other Professional Services 01- 5- 230-6190 54, 950 44, 950 44, 950 46, 000

Telephone 01- 5- 230- 6200 554 600 600 3, 000

Postage 01- 5- 230- 6210 614 1, 000 1, 000 1, 500

Printing& Publishing 01- 5- 230- 6220 957 1, 500 1, 500 1, 750

Building Department- Contractual Expenses 59. 013 51, 550 51, 550 57, 250

Office Supplies 01- 5- 230- 7020 4,651 4,460 4, 460 5, 960

Gas& Oil 01- 5- 230- 7030 1, 096 2, 465 2, 465 2, 765

Miscellaneous Expense 01- 5- 230- 7900 670 1, 000 1, 000 2, 000

Operating Transfer Out 01- 5- 230-9999 0 0 0 0

Building Department- Supplies Expenses 6,417 7, 925 7, 925 10, 725

Total Building Department Expenses 286,054 297,426 297, 426 409, 217

NET - BUILDING DEPARTMENT 123,964 16,297 16, 297 86, 099)

Civil Defense Department

RE Tax- Civil Defense 01- 4- 240-4010 7, 096 7, 000 7, 000 7, 000

Miscellaneous Revenues 01- 4- 240-4900 0 200 200 200

Miscellaneous Expense 01- 5- 240- 7900 5, 140 5, 800 5, 800 5. 800
NET- CIVIL DEFENSE DEPARTMENT 1, 956 1, 400 1, 400 1, 400

5 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Street Department Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

RE Tax- Road & Bridge 01- 4- 310-4010 328,267 300. 000 300, 000 300. 000

Grants 01- 4- 310-4150 77, 500 0 0 0

Sidewalk/Driveway/ Lot Grading 01- 4-310-4350 960 1, 800 1, 800 1 800

Miscellaneous Revenues 01- 4-310-4900 3, 891 0 0 0

Expense Reimbursement 01- 4- 310-4940 31, 452 0 0 10. 000

Expense Reimbursement 01- 5- 310-4940 97, 870 15, 000 15, 000 10 000

Street Department- Revenues 539, 939 316,800 316, 800 321, 800

Salaries- Regular- FT 01- 5- 310-5010 542, 624 597. 790 597, 790 588, 550

Overtime 01- 5- 310- 5040 38,463 40. 000 40, 000 40,000

Health Insurance 01- 5- 310- 5130 185, 333 194, 398 194, 398 205,328

Uniform Allowance 01- 5- 310- 5140 12, 776 15, 000 15, 000 15. 000

Training 01- 5- 310- 5152 489 1, 500 1. 500 1, 500

Street Dept- Personnel & Benefits Expenses 779, 684 848,688 848,688 850.378

Repair/ Maint- Storm Drain 01- 5- 310- 6001 17, 126 25,000 25,000 25.000

Repair/ Maint- St/ Parking Lot 01- 5- 310-6002 102, 843 90, 500 90, 500 90, 500

Repair/ Maint- Sidewalk/Curb 01- 5- 310-6003 69, 111 40,000 40. 000 50,000

Repair/ Maint- Building 01- 5- 310-6010 12, 824 15, 000 15, 000 15, 000

Repair/ Maint- Equipment 01- 5- 310-6020 133, 041 130,000 130,000 130, 000

Repair/ Maint- Traffic Signal 01- 5- 310-6024 36,832 33,000 33,000 43.000

Telephone/ Utilities 01- 5- 310- 6200 5, 809 6,000 6,000 6, 000

Leaf Clean- up/ Removal 01- 5- 310-6826 551 15, 000 15, 000 15, 000

Street Department- Contractual Expenses 378, 138 354. 500 354,500 374, 500

Maintenance Supplies 01- 5- 310- 7010 0 0 0 0

Office Supplies 01- 5- 310- 7020 3, 068 6,400 6,400 6,600

Gas& Oil 01- 5- 310- 7030 77, 964 85. 000 85,000 85, 000

Operating Supplies 01- 5- 310-7040 18, 417 16, 000 16, 000 20. 000

Miscellaneous Expense 01- 5- 310- 7900 100, 776 2, 100 2, 100 0

Street Department- Supplies Expenses 200,226 109,500 109,500 111, 600

Equipment 01- 5- 310- 8200 0 0 0 0

Total Street Department Expenses 1, 358, 048 1, 312,688 1, 312 688 1, 336, 478

NET - STREET DEPARTMENT 818, 109)     ( 995,888)     ( 995,888) 1, 014, 678)

Street Lighting
RE Tax- Street Lighting 01- 4-330-4010 209, 794 210,000 210.000 210, 000

Expense Reimbursement 01- 5- 330-4940 0 0 0 0

Repair/ Maint- Street Light 01- 5- 330-6022 40, 782 20.000 20. 000 20. 000

Street Lighting- Electricity 01- 5- 330-6310 253,789 320.000 320, 000 330,000

NET- STREET LIGHTING 84, 777)    ( 130,000)    ( 130, 000)   140,000)

6 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Garbage Department Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

RE Tax- Refuse/ Landfill 01- 4- 335-4010 61, 946 65, 000 65.000 45 000

Miscellaneous Revenues 01- 4- 335-4900 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous Expenses 01- 5- 335- 7900 77, 932 71, 000 71, 000 51. 000

NET- GARBAGE DEPARTMENT 15, 986)       ( 6, 000)       ( 6, 000)     6, 000)

Forestry Department
RE Tax- Forestry 01- 4- 340-4010 39, 963 40,000 40, 000 40. 000

Miscellaneous Revenues 01- 4- 340-4900 0 0 0 0

Forestry Department Revenues 39, 963 40. 000 40, 000 40, 000

Tree Removal or Purchase 01- 5- 340-6850 88, 381 100.000 100. 000 100, 000

Miscellaneous Expense 01- 5- 340- 7900 0 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

Forestry Department Expensess 88, 381 101, 000 101. 000 101, 000

NET - FORESTRY DEPARTMENT 48,418)      ( 61, 000)      ( 61, 000)    61, 000)

Engineering Department
Repair/ Maint- Vehicles 01- 5- 360-6030 0 0 0 0

Engineering 01- 5- 360-6140 11, 374 26,300 26,300 27, 000

Subdivision Expense 01- 5- 360-6824 3, 409 20,000 20,000 10. 000

Office Supplies 01- 5- 360-7020 5, 000 8. 600 8,600 8. 900

Gas& Oil 01- 5- 360-7030 0 0 0 0

NET- ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 19, 783)      ( 54,900)      ( 54,900)    45,900)

Health/ Social Services

Council on Aging 01- 5- 410-6830 23, 000 23,000 23,000 23 000

Demolition / Nuisance 01- 5- 410-6832 1, 076 5, 000 5, 000 5. 000

NET- HEALTH/ SOCIAL SERVICES 24,076)      ( 28,000)      ( 28,000)    28,000)

Economic Development

Planning Dept Services 01- 5- 610-6150 89,715 72,750 72, 750 55 500

Economic/ Business 01- 5- 610-6840 73,000 73,000 73,000 73.000

Tourism 01- 5- 610-6842 3, 000 6,000 6,000 5. 000

Historic Preservation 01- 5- 610-6844 8, 030 7, 850 7, 850 12, 800

NET- ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 173,745)     ( 159,600)    ( 159,600)   146,300)

Utility Tax
Utility Tax- Electric 01- 4- 751- 4131 1, 502, 789 1, 498. 117 1, 498. 117 1, 486.787

Utility Tax- Gas 01- 4- 751- 4132 434,307 368,553 368.553 342, 321

Utility Tax- Telephone 01- 4- 751- 4133 334, 566 345. 160 345. 160 349,535

Downtown Streetscape 01- 5- 751- 8052 5,060 700 000 700,000 1, 200,000

NET - UTILITY TAX 2, 266,602 1, 511, 830 1, 511, 830 978, 643

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 16, 793, 433 17,446, 106 17, 446, 106 18, 039,428

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 15, 592, 995 17, 342,913 17, 342,913 17, 986,838

NET REV OVER ( UNDER) EXP 1, 200,438 103, 193 103, 193 52, 590

Ending Cash 8, 591, 954 8, 695, 147 8, 695, 147 6, 847, 737

7 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



WATER/ SEWER FUND REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Beginning Cash& Investments- Fund 10, 998.090 9, 820,432 9,820.432 9,805943

Water/ Sewer General Administration

Beginning Cash& Investments 72, 924 75,456 75.456 75.456

Miscellaneous Revenues 61- 4- 110- 4900 2, 532 0 0 0

Ending Cash 75,456 75,456 75, 456 75,456

Water Department( amended 3- 16- 15)

Beginning Cash & Investments 989, 241 1, 080, 017 11080, 017 604, 959

Water Consumption 61- 4- 810-4500 2. 257,557 2, 277, 155 2, 277, 155 2, 287, 373

Dep on Agr- Westhills 61- 4- 810-4521 13, 558 0 0 0

Meters Sold 61- 4- 810-4530 92, 723 90, 700 90,700 91, 000

Other Services 61- 4- 810-4590 8, 202 10, 000 10, 000 10. 000

Miscellaneous Revenues 61- 4- 810-4900 164 0 0 0

Expense Reimbursement 61- 4- 810-4940 11, 804 0 0 0

Operating Transfers- in ( Reserves) 61- 4- 810- 9998 0 763,000 763,000 0

Total Water Department Revenues 2, 384, 009 31140, 855 3, 140,855 2, 388, 373

Salaries- Regular- FT 61- 5- 810-5010 518, 051 595, 136 595, 136 571. 634

Overtime 61- 5-810-5040 33, 212 45, 000 45,000 38,000

FICA 61- 5-810-5079 0 0 0 44,567

IMRF 61- 5- 810- 5120 132. 539 128,012 128, 012 84,952

Group Health Insurance 61- 5- 810- 5130 180, 142 190, 035 190, 035 195,856

Uniform Allowance 61- 5- 810- 5140 10, 286 14, 100 14, 100 14, 100

Rep& Maint- Infrastructure 61- 5- 810- 6000 69, 706 52, 500 52, 500 63,900

Rep& Maint- Buildings 61- 5- 810- 6010 14, 626 66,500 66, 500 24, 500

Rep& Maint- Equipment 61- 5- 810- 6020 28, 846 47,520 47, 520 8. 000

Rep& Maint- Vehicles 61- 5- 810- 6030 26, 155 16, 000 16. 000 20,000

Rep& Maint- Contractual 61- 5- 810- 6040 68, 375 100,000 100, 000 85,000

Other Professional Services 61- 5-810- 6190 1. 477 11. 000 11, 000 11. 000

Telephone 61- 5-810- 6200 6. 758 8, 000 8, 000 9, 500

Postage 61- 5-810- 6210 16. 073 19, 000 19, 000 19. 000

Utilities 61- 5- 810-6300 261, 938 318, 750 318, 750 300,000

Office Equip Rental/ Maint 61- 5- 810-6410 13, 745 30, 730 30, 730 31, 000

Liability Insurance 61- 5- 810-6800 105, 070 115, 577 115, 577 122,000

Lab Expense 61- 5- 810-6812 26, 966 33,200 33, 200 33, 200

Office Supplies 61- 5- 810- 7020 8, 629 9, 400 9, 400 9.400

Gas& Oil 61- 5- 810-7030 23, 099 23, 000 23, 000 23.000

Operating Supplies 61- 5- 810- 7040 51, 273 63, 000 63, 000 63,000

Chemicals 61- 5- 810-7050 89, 263 102, 000 102, 000 105,000

Meters 61- 5- 810-7060 129, 909 198, 000 198, 000 25,000

Bad Debt Expense 61- 5- 810- 7850 3, 804 2, 000 2, 000 2, 000

Miscellaneous Expenses 61- 5- 810-7900 6, 961 10, 250 10. 250 8, 750

Equipment 61- 5- 810-8200 2.485 0 0 0

Transfer Out 61- 5- 810-9999 0 500, 000 500. 000 0

Depreciaton Set Aside 288, 061 296, 703 296, 703 305.604

Bond Pmt Set Aside 183. 175 120, 500 120, 500 141 200

Total Water Department Expenses 2, 300,626 3, 115,914 3, 115, 913 2, 359, 164

Net Water Department 83, 383 24,941 24, 942 29, 209

Change in Accounts Receivable( YTD) 7, 393

Ending Cash & Investments 1, 080,017 604,958 604, 959 634, 168

8 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Sewer Department

Beginning Cash & Investments 531, 620 1, 055, 724 1, 055, 724 1, 171, 172

Sewer Consumption 61- 4- 820-4500 3,428, 139 3, 255,695 3,255,695 3, 269. 987

Dep on Agr- Westhills 61- 4- 820-4521 7, 193 0 0 0

Meters Sold 61- 4- 820-4530 91, 417 90, 700 90, 700 91, 000

Other Services 61- 4- 820-4590 55, 958 14, 200 14, 200 14, 200

Miscellaneous Revenues 61- 4- 820-4900 68, 904 0 0 0

Expense Reimbursement 61- 4- 820-4940 24, 585 0 0 0

Operating Transfers- In ( Reserves) 61- 4- 820-9998 0 2, 191, 000 2, 191, 000 500.000

Total Sewer Department Revenues 3, 676, 195 5, 551, 595 5, 551, 595 3, 875, 187

Salaries- Regular- FT 61- 5- 820- 5010 607, 992 671, 757 671, 757 585.057

Overtime 61- 5- 820- 5040 52, 761 55, 000 55,000 55,000

FICA 61- 5- 820- 5079 0 0 0 46,894

IMRF 61- 5- 820- 5120 130, 567 140,448 140, 448 89.461

Group Health Insurance 61- 5- 820-5130 196, 517 206,987 206,987 199, 326

Dental Insurance 61- 5- 820- 5131 114 0 0 0

Uniform Allowance 61- 5- 820- 5140 14, 850 15, 500 15, 500 15. 500

Travel 61- 5- 820- 5151 2, 554 0 0 0

Rep& Maint- Lift Stations 61- 5- 820- 6005 55, 535 16, 500 16, 500 16, 500

Rep& Maint- Buildings 61- 5- 820- 6010 129, 493 1, 193,000 1. 193, 000 103.000

Rep& Maint- Equipment 61- 5- 820-6020 6, 315 0 0 0

Rep& Maint- Vehicles 61- 5- 820- 6030 26, 587 23,000 23, 000 23.000

Rep& Maint- Contractual 61- 5- 820-6040 1, 152 5,000 5, 000 0

Other Professional Services 61- 5- 820-6190 38, 344 54, 300 54, 300 73. 500

Telephone 61- 5- 820-6200 19, 452 13, 500 13, 500 13. 500

Postage 61- 5- 820-6210 16, 072 15, 000 15, 000 15. 000

Utilities 61- 5- 820-6300 249,646 248.000 248, 000 248.000

Office Equip Rental/ Maint 61- 5- 820-6410 5, 464 11, 400 11, 400 6.800

Liability Insurance 61- 5- 820-6800 124, 771 137. 248 137, 248 144. 110

Lab Expense 61- 5- 820-6812 49,884 56,000 56, 000 56.000

Sludge Disposal 61- 5- 820-6814 9, 587 9, 700 9, 700 9. 700

Office Supplies 61- 5- 820- 7020 10, 944 81700 8, 700 8. 700

Gas& Oil 61- 5- 820- 7030 28,958 40,000 40,000 40.000

Operating Supplies 61- 5- 820- 7040 9, 500 12, 000 12, 000 12. 000

Chemicals 61- 5- 820- 7050 82, 992 108,000 108, 000 108.000

Meters 61- 5- 820- 7060 12, 952 371. 000 371, 000 25 000

Bad Debt Expense 61- 5- 820- 7850 5, 585 2, 000 2. 000 4 000

Miscellaneous Expense 61- 5-820- 7900 18, 975 4. 900 4, 900 5 000

Equipment 61- 5- 820-8200 0 0 0 0

Operating Transfer Out 61- 5- 820-9999 0 500,000 500.000 500.000

1, 907, 563 3, 918, 940 3, 918.940 2, 403,048

Collection System Expenses

Salaries- Regular- FT 61- 5- 830- 5010 262, 073 268, 580 268. 580 281, 331

Overtime 61- 5- 830- 5040 23, 235 30, 000 30, 000 30, 000

FICA 61- 5- 820- 5079 0 0 0 23, 817

IMRF 61- 5- 820- 5120 62, 082 67. 009 67, 009 46, 139

Group Health Ins 61- 5- 820- 5130 83, 149 88, 067 88, 067 93, 270

Uniform Allowance 61- 5- 830- 5140 3,402 61600 6, 600 6,600

Rep& Maint- Infrastructure 61- 5- 830-6000 11, 725 207, 000 207, 000 32. 000

Rep& Maint- Equipment 61- 5- 830-6020 335 8, 000 8, 000 8. 000

Rep& Maint- Vehicles 61- 5- 830-6030 32,430 13, 000 13, 000 13, 000
Office Equip Rent/Maint 61- 5- 830-6410 10, 141 30,090 30, 090 30, 300
Gas& Oil 61- 5- 830-7030 11, 542 12. 500 12, 500 12, 500

9 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Operating Supplies 61- 5- 830- 7040 13, 495 18, 500 18, 500 18 500

Misc Expense 61- 5- 830- 7900 699 2, 600 2, 600 2. 900

Equipment 61- 5- 830-8200 2, 485 80, 000 80, 000 0

Depreciation Set Aside 426, 954 439, 763 439,763 452, 956

Bond Pmt Set Aside 308, 175 245,500 245,500 332, 395

Total Sewer Department Expenses 3, 159,484 5, 436, 149 5, 436, 147 3, 786,756

Net Sewer Department 516, 711 115, 446 115,448 88,431

Change in Accounts Receivable 7, 393 0 0 0

Ending Cash& Investments 1, 055,724 1, 171, 170 1, 171, 172 759,603

Bond Reserves( necessary per bond ordinances)
Beginning Cash& Investments 583,428 585, 160 585, 160 585 160

Interest Income 1, 732 0 0 0

Ending Cash & Investments 585. 160 585, 160 585, 160 585, 160

Connection Fees I Deposits on Agreement Accounting
Beginning Cash & Investments 6, 292, 251 4, 005, 993 4, 005, 993 4, 574. 793

Sources

Interest Income 15,420 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

Connection Fees 61- 4- 810- 4510 73,033 24, 000 24, 000 24, 000

Deposits on Agreement 61- 4- 810- 4520 11, 935 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000

Connection Fees 61- 4- 820-4510 62, 371 28, 800 28, 800 28, 800

Deposits on Agreement 61- 4- 820- 4520 21, 737 10, 000 10, 000 10 000

Connection Fee Set-Aside 0 1, 000, 000 1, 000, 000 0

TOTAL Sources 184, 497 1, 087, 800 1, 087. 800 87, 800

Uses

Construction in Progress- Water 109, 509 519, 000 519. 000 0

Construction in Progress- Sewer 0 0 0 0

Building 61- 1730 2, 361, 246 0 0 0

Equip& Vehicles- 1750 61- 1750 0 0 0 0

Building 0 0 0 0

TOTAL Uses 2, 470, 755 519, 000 519, 000 0

Ending Cash & Investments 4, 005,993 4, 574, 793 4,574, 793 4, 662, 593

10 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Depreciation Funding
Beginning Cash& Investments 2, 291, 953 2, 777, 209 2, 777, 209 2, 093,675

Sources

Interest Income 12, 465 15, 000 15, 000 15. 000

Loan Funds& Grant Funds 0 0 0 0

Misc 20, 549 0 0 0

Depreciation set aside- Water( for Plant)     79,928 82, 326 82, 326 84. 796

Depreciation set aside- Water( for System)      208, 133 214,377 214,377 220.808

Depreciation set aside- Sewer( for System)      141, 437 145, 680 145,680 150, 050

Depreciation set aside- Sewer( for Repl) 285,517 294,083 294,083 802,905

TOTAL Sources 748,029 751, 466 751, 466 1, 273, 559

Uses

Construction in Progress- Water 0 0 0 100.000

Construction in Progress- Sewer 173,949 1, 385,000 1, 385. 000 1, 200.000

Equipment& Vehicles 88,823 50. 000 50, 000 330.000

Buildings 0 0 0 0

TOTAL Uses 262, 773 1, 435,000 1, 435, 000 1, 630,000

Ending Cash & Investments 2, 777, 209 2, 093,675 2, 093, 675 1, 737, 234

Bond Payments Accounting
Beginning Cash & Investments 236,673 240,872 240, 872 200, 231

Sources

Interest Income 2, 100 2, 500 2, 500 2. 500

Bond Proceeds 61- 4- 110-4901 0 0 0 0

Operating Transfer In 61- 4- 110-9998 0 0 0 0

Bond Pmt Set Aside 491. 350 365, 500 365,500 473. 595

TOTAL Sources 493.450 368, 000 368, 001 476, 095

Uses

Debt Sery- Principal 61- 5- 110-8910 422,401 349,816 349,816 501. 068

Debt Sery- Interest 61- 5- 110-8920 66, 849 58, 301 58, 301 52, 924

Fiscal Charges 61- 5- 110-8930 0 525 525 525

Bond Issuance Cost 61- 5- 110-9031 0 0 0

TOTAL Uses 489. 250 408,642 408, 642 554, 517

Ending Cash & Investments 240, 872 200,231 200, 231 121, 809

Gross Revenues( excludes set asides)    6,284, 079 9, 797,750 9, 797, 751 6, 368, 860

Gross Expenditures( excludes set asides) 7, 476, 523 9,812,239 9,812, 236 7,098, 282

NET CASH FLOW 1, 192,444)      ( 14, 489)      ( 14, 485)   729,422)

Change in Accounts Receivable 14, 786 0 0 0

Ending Cash& Investments- Fund 9,820,432 9, 805,943 9,805, 947 9, 076, 521

11 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Motor Fuel Tax Fund # 10

Cash Balance- beginning 651, 143 831, 001 831. 001 698, 923

Revenues

State Allotment 10- 4- 310-4140 614,676 608, 923 608. 923 647. 500

IL Jobs Now 204,384 0 0 0

Interest on Investments 10- 4- 310-4600 680 0 0 656

M sc Revenues 10- 4- 310-4900 56, 199 24, 000 24, 000 29. 000

Total Revenues 875, 939 632, 923 632, 923 677, 156

Expenditures

Street Maintenance 10- 5- 310-6000 156, 872 200,000 200,000 220,000

Contracted Work 10- 5- 310-6000 539, 209 565,000 565,000 465,000

Miscellaneous Expenditures 10- 5- 310- 7900 0 0 0 0

Toal Expenditures 696.081 765,000 765 000 685, 000

Cash Balance- ending 831. 001 698.923 698.923 691, 079

Kishwaukee TIF Fund# 13

Cash Balance- beginning 242,610 243, 895 243,895 233, 895

Revenues

Property Taxes 13- 4- 110-4010 20,977 30, 000 30. 000 22, 000

Interest Income 13- 4- 110-4600 0 0 0 0

Misc Revenue 13- 4- 110- 4900 7 0 0 0

Total Revenues 20.985 30, 000 30. 000 22, 000

Expenditures

Tax Increment Dist- Int 13- 5- 110-8920 7, 506 22, 700 22, 700 7, 208

Tax Increment Dist- Prin 13- 5- 110-8930 11, 827 12, 300 12, 300 12, 792

Other Contractual Services 13- 5- 110-6890 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous Expense 13- 5- 110- 7900 367 5, 000 5. 000 0

Total Expenditures 19, 700 40, 000 40. 000 20, 000

Cash Balance- ending 243,895 233. 895 233. 895 235, 895

12 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Bely Mall TIF Bond/ Interest Fund# 14

Cash Balance- beginning 23, 719 93 93 93

Revenues

Property Tax 14- 4- 110-4010 0 0 0 0

Interest Income 14- 4- 110-4600 0 0 0 0

O er Trfs- in Sales Tax>$ 100m 14- 4- 110-9998 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

Miscellaneous Expense 14- 5- 110- 7900 0 0

Bond Interest Paid 14- 5- 110- 8920 23,626 0 0 0

Bond Principal Paid 14- 5- 110- 8930 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 23,626 0 0 0

Cash Balance- ending 93 93 93 93

Kishwaukee II TIF Fund# 15

Cash Balance- beginning 4. 915 4. 915 41915 4. 915

Revenues

Property Tax 15- 4- 110-4010 0 0 0 0

Interest Income 15-4- 110-4600 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues 0 0 0 0

Expenditures

Other Contractual Services 15- 5- 110-6890 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous Expense 15- 5- 110- 7900 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 0 0 0 0

Cash Balance- ending 4. 915 4. 915 4, 915 4, 915

Sp Sery Areas# s 2 & 3( Farmington Fields) Fund# 16

Cash Balance- beginning 35, 617 28, 085 28, 085 19, 085

Revenues

Property Tax 16- 4- 110-4010 12, 140 16, 000 16. 000 18, 000

Interest Income 16- 4- 110-4600 0 0 0 0

Total Revenues 12. 140 16, 000 16. 000 18, 000

Expenditures

Maintenance Expense 16- 5- 110- 6090 19. 190 24, 000 24, 000 26.000

Misc Expense 16- 5- 110- 7900 482 1, 000 1, 000 1. 000

Total Expenditures 19, 672 25, 000 25, 000 27, 000

Cash Balance- ending 28. 085 19, 085 19, 085 10, 085

13 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account# FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Library Operations Fund# 18
Cash Balance- beginning 498.204 504. 189 504. 189 504, 189

Revenues

Property Tax 18- 4- 510-4010 660.423 660,000 660, 000 676, 354

Replacement Taxes 18- 4- 510-4120 38, 865 25, 000 25, 000 40, 231

Fines, Fees, and Gifts 18- 4-510-44XX 45, 908 61, 000 61, 000 59. 000

Grant Proceeds 18- 4- 510- 4150 33,611 26, 000 26, 000 26. 000

Other Revenues 96, 121 80,000 80. 000 53, 415

Total Revenues 874, 928 852, 000 852. 000 855, 000

Expenditures

Salaries 18- 5- 510- 50XX 375, 021 377, 227 377, 227 384, 770

Book Periodicals, A V 18- 5- 510- 73XX 115, 901 105, 500 105, 500 107, 926

Utilities 18- 5- 510-6300 3, 450 13. 600 13, 600 5. 000

Computer Equip/ Upgrades 18- 5- 510-62XX 30,810 36, 000 36, 000 36,000

Machine Rental 18- 5- 510-6410 5, 923 5, 950 5, 950 5,950

Supplies 18- 5- 510- 7020 21, 552 23, 000 23,000 23,000

Insurance 18- 5- 510-6800 58,609 71, 019 71, 019 89,000

Maintenance/ Repair 18- 5- 510-6010 61, 313 43, 974 43.974 44, 000

Other Expenditures 18- 5- 510- 7900 196, 364 175, 730 175. 730 159.354

Total Expenditures 868,943 852. 000 852.000 855,000

Audit Adjustments

Cash balance- ending 504, 189 504, 189 504, 189 504, 189

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND# 41

Public Benefit Account

Cash Balance- beginning 403,362 724,468 724,468 1, 174,468

Revenues

Property Tax 41- 4- 110-4010 39,963 40. 000 40,000 40,000

Expense Reimbursement 41- 4- 110-4940 17, 134 0 0 0

Interest Income 41- 4- 110-4600 1 0 0 0

Transfer- In 41- 4- 110- 9998 471, 879 450.000 450. 000 450 000

Total Revenues 528,977 490000 490. 000 490,000

Expenditures

Miscellaneous Expenditures 41- 5- 110- 7900 35,609 40.000 40 000 40 000

Infrastructure 41- 5- 110- 8020 172, 262 0 0 1. 500 000

Operating Transfer Out 41- 5- 110- 9999 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 207, 871 40. 000 40. 000 1, 540,000

Cash Balance- ending 724.468 1, 174,468 1. 174.468 124,468

14 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account#    FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Capital Assets Account

Cash Balance- beginning 96, 940 95, 625 95. 625 96. 125

Grants 41- 4-752-4150 0 0 0 0

Interest Income 41- 4- 752-4600 342 500 500 500

Miscellaneous Revenues 41- 4- 752-4900 0 0 0 0

Bank Loan Proceeds 41- 4- 752-4952 0 0 0 0

Operatinq Transfers In 41- 4- 752- 9998 473,003 697, 281 697, 281 537. 021

Capital Asset Revenues 473, 345 697, 781 697, 781 537, 521

Misc Expense 41- 5- 752- 7900 725 0 0 0

Building and Improvements 41- 5- 752-8100 93,750 350,000 350,000 0

Equipment 41- 5- 752-8200 0 12, 000 12, 000 46.000

Vehicles 41- 5- 752- 8300 325,650 276,435 276.435 442. 500

Furniture& Fixtures 41- 5- 752- 8400 0 0 0 0

Bond I Loan Prin Payments 41- 5- 752- 8910 45,000 58, 846 58, 846 58. 121

Bond/ Loan Int Payments 41- 5- 752- 8920 9.535 0 0 0

Capital Asset Expenditures 474.660 697, 281 697, 281 546, 621

Cash Balance- ending 95 625 96 125 96 125 87, 025

Escrow Fund# 91

Cash Balance- beginning 1, 189, 937 1, 067. 448 1 067. 448 1, 103.948

Other Fees 91- 4- 110- 4490 0 0 0 0

Interest Income 91- 4- 110- 4600 1. 507 1. 500 1, 500 15. 000

Miscellaneous Revenues 91- 4- 110- 4900 20 0 0 0

Escrow/Land Cash Fees 91- 4- 110- 4971 0 50. 000 50, 000 50. 000

Total Revenues 1, 527 51. 500 51, 500 65,000

Disbursement of Collected Fees 124, 016 15. 000 15, 000 40. 000

Total Expenditures 124, 016 15. 000 15, 000 40, 000

Cash Balance- ending 1, 067,448 1, 103. 948 1, 103, 948 1, 128, 948

Police Pension Fund

Cash Balance- beginning 17, 247, 854 18, 609, 897 18, 609. 897 19. 872, 868

Revenues

Property Tax 947, 866 1, 013, 800 1, 013. 800 1, 024, 856

Replacement Tax 63,852 64, 171 64, 171 66, 096

Interest Inc/Mkt Fluctuation 1, 087, 588 1, 000 000 1, 000,000 415. 900

Contributions 290, 060 280, 000 280,000 298. 157

Total Revenues 2, 389. 366 2, 357, 971 2, 357, 971 1, 805, 009

Expenditures

Benefit Payments 1, 002, 142 1, 010. 000 1, 010, 000 1, 138. 128

Contribution Refunds 0 0 0 2. 500

Other Expenditures 25, 181 85,000 85. 000 36, 715

Total Expenditures 1, 027, 323 1, 095,000 1, 095. 000 1, 177, 343

Cash Balance- ending 18, 609,897 19, 872,868 19. 872. 868 20, 500, 534

15 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



REVISED FY 17

Actual FY 16 Budget Budget

Line Item Account#    FY 15 Budget FY 16 Request

Fire Pension Fund

Cash Balance- beginning 13, 324, 703 14, 101. 696 14, 101. 696 15, 002,467

Revenues

Property Tax 722, 407 721, 600 721. 600 796, 892

Replacement Tax 63, 852 64, 171 64, 171 66, 096

Interest Inc/ Market Fluctuation 881, 509 11000. 000 1, 000,000 296, 350

Contributions 173, 795 185, 000 185, 000 185, 375

Total Revenues 1, 841, 563 1. 970, 771 1, 970, 771 1, 344,713

Expenditures

Benefit Payments 1, 045,565 1, 000,000 1, 000 000 1. 200.465

Refund of Contributions 0 0 0 2. 500

Other Expenditures 19. 005 70, 000 70. 000 36, 825

Total Expenditures 1, 064,570 1, 070,000 1, 070,000 1, 239,790

Cash Balance- ending 14, 101, 696 15, 002,467 15, 002.467 15, 107, 390

16 of 16 BudgetOrdinancel



EXHIBIT B

Non- Union Salary Schedule FY17

Except as noted the following reflect 2% increases.

FY 16 FY 17

Director PW'       Anderson, Brent 88, 573 97,854

Street/Water/Sewer Supt `*     Anderson, Danny       $  69, 860 76, 257

Budget & Finance Officer Tobin 72, 048 73, 489

Police Chief"'*'  Noble 101, 691 103, 725

Dep Chief   ""'  Woody 95, 935 97, 854

Dep Chief   ""'  Martin 95, 935 97, 854

Police Admin Daniels 48, 504 49, 474
Fire Chief Hyser 95, 935 97, 854

Dep CityClerk Embry 48, 559 49, 530
Assistant Clerk Turnipseed 34, 567 35, 258

Transcriptionist Taromina 27, 763 28, 318
Det Admin Asst Mitchell M 33, 218 33, 882

City Atty Drella 104, 818 106, 914
Chief Building Insp. Morelock 67, 652 69,005

Zoning and Code Enforcement-       Whetsel 38,958 41,737

Building/ Planning Reception Crawford 27, 304 27, 850
Com/ Ind Plans Examiner( part- time)    Cowles 22, 614 23, 066
Fire Admin Assistant****  Gilman 23, 338 27, 304

Community Development Planner( new position)      50, 000

Includes 2% raise plus an additional $ 7, 510. ( salary will be the same as Fire Chief and Deputy Police Chiefs)
Includes 2% raise plus an additional $ 5, 000. (salary will be comparable to Supt that retired in 2015)
Includes 2% raise plus an additional$ 2, 000.

Includes 2% raise plus an additional $ 3, 500. ( brings hourly wage from 11. 22 per hour to 13. 13 per hour)
The Police Chiefs salary shall be 6% over that of the Deputy Chiefs.

The Deputy Chief's Salary shall be 6% over the sergeants pay including maximum longevity



RESOLUTION #2038- 2016:

RELEASE OF CERTAIN EXECUTIVE

SESSION MINUTES PURSUANT TO 5 ILCS 120/ 1 Et. Seq.

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the City of Belvidere have met, from time to time, in executive
session for purposes authorized by the Illinois Open Meetings Act( 5 ILCS 120/ 1 et seq.) ( Hereinafter the
Act); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Mayor and City Council have met in closed session to review the
minutes of all closed sessions to determine if it is necessary to protect the public interest, or the privacy of
any individual, by keeping said minutes confidential; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council determined that a need for confidentiality still exists as to the
executive session minutes identified on the attached Schedule A; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council determined that the minutes of the meetings listed on the
attached Schedule B no longer require confidential treatment and should be made available for public
inspection.

IT IS THEREFORE RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF
BELVIDERE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1:       The Executive Session minutes from those meetings set forth on Schedule B, attached

hereto and incorporated herein are hereby released. The City Clerk is hereby authorized to make said
minutes available for public inspection and copying in accordance with the standing procedures of the
office of the City Clerk.

Section 2:       The City Clerk is also authorized and directed to destroy the verbatim record, if any, of the
executive sessions identified in Schedule B for destruction.

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Date Adopted:

Date Approved:

By:
Michael W. Chamberlain, Mayor

Attest:

Shauna Arco, City Clerk



SCHEDULE A

December 2, 1996 ( Paragraph 2a)

April 16, 2001

May 7, 2001 ( Paragraph 2)
October 10, 2011

April 14, 2014

June 2, 2014

July 14, 2014 ( Paragraph 2)
July 21, 2014 ( Paragraph 1)
August 25, 2014 ( Paragraph 2)

October 6, 2014 ( Paragraph 2)

December 8, 2014 ( Paragraph 1)

SCHEDULE B

August 3, 2015

The Clerk is authorized to immediately destroy the designated Executive Session verbatim record.

Y:\ Draft Ord inances\ RESOLUT[ON. release- executive. 8. 2013. doc



RESOLUTION# 2039-2016:

A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT
TO PUBLISH THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF BELVIDERE

WHEREAS, Illinois statute requires municipalities to publish a zoning map annually; and

WHEREAS, the City of Belvidere has compiled and attached hereto as Exhibit A, a
zoning map ( dated March, 2016 and current with all approved map amendments and
annexation) depicting zoning districts as required by state statute, and

WHEREAS, the Official Zoning Map is on file and available for public inspection and
purchase at the Belvidere- Boone County Planning office at 401 Whitney Boulevard,
Belvidere.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and the City Council of the City
of Belvidere that the Planning Department is directed to publish the Official Zoning Map
by posting a copy of the map on the office of the Planning Department' s web site. The
Planning Department is further authorized to make the Official Zoning Map available for
purchase.

Approved:

Mayor

Attest:

City Clerk

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Approved:



t

i

MINI

0



City of Belvidere Community Development Planner

The City of Belvidere Community Development Planner shall be an FLSA exempt position in
category C- 1 of the City' s Personnel Manual. The position requires a college degree in urban
land planning, geography, or a related field. An advanced degree or certifications in urban land
planning or a related field is desired. The position works closely with the Building Department
and Public Works Department and is considered a part of the Community Development
Department of the City of Belvidere. The immediate supervisor for the position is the Finance
Director.

Duties and Responsibilities

The major task areas expected in the performance of this job include:

1.  Review of annexations, annexation agreements, site plans, photometric landscaping, preliminary and
final plats, special use and planned development permits, variances, general rezoning, non-conforming
structures, and other development proposals for compliance with City ordinances, policies and codes, as
well as good planning practice.

2. Assisting in the preparation of reports, recommendations, and presentations to the Planning and
Zoning Commission, City Council, and community and professional organizations. The position assists in
the preparation and management of planning, zoning, and land use cases through the City's review and
approval process.

3. The position provides general information to citizens, builders, land owners, and developers regarding
City planning and zoning directives. It receives and processes inquiries relating to City limits, zoning,
permitted uses in zoning districts, and code requirements relative to set backs, parking, landscaping, etc.,
assuring compliance with City codes and ordinances. It also assists with the completion of applications
required for review by the City Council, and Planning and Zoning Commission.

4. The Planner provides general zoning information related to signs, fences, parking, decks,
antennas/satellite dishes, building additions and other miscellaneous information. The Planner also
composes zoning letters as requested.

5. The Planner conducts field investigations and site visits; performs courthouse record and
documentation research; maintains base maps and plat files.  It may also perform photographic and other
background work required for court cases and special projects.

6. The Position assists with data management, updating maps, and coordinating related tasks, including
periodic and special census counts with U. S. Census Bureau, and also coordinates with the Belvidere/
Boone County GIS Department.

7. The Planner will conduct research, collect data and prepare graphics and statistics for use in planning
reports. The position summarizes information from maps, graphs, reports, field studies, etc. and prepares
statistical reports, tabulations, computations, graphs, site sketch plans, and charts to illustrate concepts.
The Planner will also prepare basic thematic maps depicting various social and demographic information.
The Planner will provide graphic interpretation of ordinances for public understanding and coordinate the
annual update of the City' s Official Zoning Map.

8. The Planner will research and analyze development plans, land use issues, transportation patterns
and concerns, socio-economic data, housing data and patterns, environmental studies, utility demands,



park and open space considerations and related urban planning considerations. The position also
prepares population, land use, and development and redevelopment projections.

9. The Planner participates in the research, development, and implementation of the City's
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning and Subdivision Regulations, including updates and amendments.

10. The Planner will assist in the drafting of proposed development regulations. The position also reviews
and performs basic research regarding ordinances, laws, rules and regulations for planning,
development, and code enforcement functions, in cooperation with the City' s legal department. The
Planner assists developers, builders, City officials and other interested parties regarding planning issues,
zoning matters, and problems and assists in the drafting of ordinances, including amendments to the
zoning and subdivision ordinances, and all other ordinances pertaining to zoning, subdivision and land
use issues.

11. The Planner will assist in the drafting of ordinances and resolutions regarding specific development
proposals for City Council action, including ordinances for rezoning, annexations, preliminary plats and
final plats, and special uses.

12. The Planner shall attend meetings of the Planning and Zoning Commission, Committees of the Whole
as needed and City Council meetings as needed. The Planner shall organize, attend, and participate in
public meetings and public hearings as needed.

13. The Planner shall assume other responsibilities as assigned including but not limited to: Historic
Preservation, community events, and addressing.


